
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Members of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee are summoned to a meeting, 
which will be held in Committee Room 5, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 20 September 
2016 at 7.00 pm. 
 
 
John Lynch 
Head of Democratic Services 
 
 

Enquiries to : Zoe Lewis 

Tel : 020 7527 3044 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 12 September 2016 

 
 
Membership Substitute Members 
 
Councillor James Court (Chair) 
Councillor Dave Poyser (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Raphael Andrews 
Councillor Mouna Hamitouche  MBE 
Councillor Gary Heather 
Councillor Clare Jeapes 
Councillor Rupert Perry 
Councillor Caroline Russell 
 

Councillor Theresa Debono 
Councillor Satnam Gill OBE 
Councillor Alice Perry 
Councillor Angela Picknell 
 

 
Quorum is 4 members of the Sub-Committee 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  

 
Formal Matters 
 

Pages 
 

1.  Apologies for Absence 
 

 
 

2.  Declarations of Substitute Members 
 

 
 

3.  Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 

 

4.  Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 

1 - 6 
 

5.  Public Questions 
 

 
 

6.  Chair's Report 
 

 
 

B.  

 
Items for Decision/Discussion 
 

Pages 
 

1.  Fuel Poverty scrutiny review - 12 month report back 
 

7 - 12 
 

2.  Communal Heating scrutiny review - 12 month report back To 



 
 
 

 Follow 
 

3.  Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review - Presentation and Scrutiny 
Initiation Document (SID) 
 

To 
Follow 
 

4.  Work Programme 
 

13 - 14 
 

C.  

 
Urgent non-exempt items (if any) 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgent by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

D.  

 
Exclusion of press and public 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential information within 
the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, 
if so, whether to exclude the press and public during discussion thereof. 

 

E.  

 
Confidential/exempt items 
 

Pages 
 

F.  

 
Urgent exempt items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 

The next meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee will be on 3 
November 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  24 May 2016 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee held at 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on  24 May 2016 at 7.00 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: James Court (Chair), Diarmaid Ward (Vice-Chair), 
Raphael Andrews, Gary Heather, Clare Jeapes, 
Caroline Russell and Rupert Perry 

 
 

Councillor James Court in the Chair 
 

 

42 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A1) 
Apologies were received from Councillor Hamitouche. 
 

43 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A2) 
There were no substitute members. 
 

44 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A3) 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

45 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the minutes of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee meeting on 25 
April 2016 be confirmed as an accurate record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised 
to sign them. 
 

46 PUBLIC QUESTIONS (Item A5) 
Public Questions would be taken during the relevant agenda items. 
 

47 CHAIR'S REPORT (Item A6) 
There was no chair’s report. 
 

48 ARRANGEMENTS AND TERMS OF REFERENCE (Item B1) 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the report be noted. 
 

49 AIR QUALITY PRESENTATION (Item B2) 
Paul Clift, Environmental Health Manager gave a presentation on Air Quality. 
 
In the presentation and discussion the following points were made: 

 The National Air Quality Strategy was introduced in 1997. 

 The first Air Quality Action Plan was drawn up in 2003. 

 The Air Quality Strategy 2014-17 was in place. 

 Particulate Matter (PM) and Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) were the main pollutants. 

 The air quality in Islington had improved and had been complying with the PM 10 
limit for several years. However the NO2, although within compliance of daily limits, 
exceeded the annual mean at measured sites. 

Page 1

Agenda Item A4



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  24 May 2016 
 

2 
 

 Since the air quality scrutiny, more work had been undertaken on lobbying for 
cleaner buses, working with schools and reducing exposure. 

 Funding had been received for a schools programme with Haringey and Hackney. 
Work had taken place in three schools in each of the boroughs. In Islington these 
were Montem, Grafton and Ambler. Walking information had been produced and 
work had taken place with the children to help them understand more about air 
quality and how to reduce their exposure. 

 Work had taken place to engage businesses and community groups. 

 A Car Free Day would be held in September. 

 There was a £300,000 commitment from the Mayor’s Fund for an air quality project 
in Archway. 

 The council was looking to install electric hooks up on the canal and introduce more 
electric charging points. 

 The new London Mayor had announced a formal policy consultation on air quality 
and had indicated that the ultra-low emission zone could be extended. If it was 
extended, it would cover Islington.  

 Air Pollution Exposure in London had identified 20 schools in London with the 
highest exposure. This included four Islington schools. 

 Biomass could result in carbon reduction but did not help air quality. 

 DEFRA had submitted best projections of NO2 limits being reached by 2020 across 
the UK and in London by 2025. 

 The borough had two monitoring stations – one at the Ecology Centre and the other 
on Holloway Road. In addition there were diffusion tubes at sites around the 
borough. 

 Air pollution was worse in the south of the borough than in the north. 

 The introduction of 20mph roads had not had a significant impact on air quality but it 
had helped encourage a change of behaviour, with more people walking and 
cycling. 

 Part of Seven Sisters Road was a NO2 focus area. 

 A member of the public reported concerns about barbecuing on Highbury Fields.  A 
study had been done with Kings College as residents were concerned about the 
health impacts, particularly on the vulnerable including the elderly and young 
children. Measurements were taken on a weekend when there were lots of 
barbecues taking place and high levels of pollutants were recorded. The officer 
advised that the figures a snapshot but this was a different way of measuring to the 
way it was measured across the borough which made it hard to compare. However 
they did not dismiss that there could be an effect on air pollution. Public Health had 
concluded the levels of PM2.5 had been high but confirmed that the figures could 
not be compared to those produced across the borough as they were measured 
differently.  

 A member who had Highbury Fields in her ward stated that she received questions 
from concerned residents. She asked that Public Health provide her with a written 
assurance that there was no serious risk to public health from barbecues taking 
place if this was the case. 

 
RESOLVED: 

1) That the presentation be noted. 
2) That the committee be provided with information on the progress towards Silver 

FORs accreditation, changes to the fleet, the fuel used by Car Clubs and levels of 
personal car ownership. 

3) That Public Health be asked to provide a written assurance that there was no 
serious risk to public health from barbecues taking place if this was the case. 

4) That a session on barbecuing in parks be arranged for a future meeting. 
 

Page 2



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  24 May 2016 
 

3 
 

50 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY PRESENTATION (Item B3) 
Eric Manners (Team Leader – Planning Obligations) gave a presentation on the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), a copy of which would be interleaved with the agenda. 
 
In the presentation and discussion the following points were made: 

 Islington Council adopted its CIL in September 2014. It replaced most infrastructure 
contributions through Section 106 but was more flexible as it had to address the 
impacts of growth. 

 Pre-CIL S106 agreements would remain in effect and Section 106 funds would 
continue to be received for some years. 

 CIL Regulations required a minimum of 15% to be allocated based on ‘agreed local 
priorities’. 

 Since the adoption of Islington’s CIL the total CIL liabilities issued was £27.6 million. 
(This would only be received once development commenced). 

 The estimated future CIL receipts between 2015 and 2018 was £15-21 million. 

 The CIL allocation process was an annual Executive decision made as part of the 
budget setting process. After monitoring and collection fees of 5%, it was proposed 
that CIL income be split into 50% - Strategic CIL, 35% Local Strategic and 15% 
Local CIL.  

 The 50% Strategic CIL would be allocated by the council as part of the annual 
budget setting process. Strategic CIL schemes included projects that contributed to 
revenue savings, projects that delivered statutory requirements, committed capital 
projects with a funding shortfall, projects that supported the delivery of new council 
homes e.g. Finsbury Leisure Centre and projects with other community benefits. 

 The 35% Local Strategic CIL would be allocated by ward councillors for ‘the 
provision, improvements, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure’. It 
could be spent on anything that was included on the strategic ‘CIL Regulation 123’ 
infrastructure list within that ward or a neighbouring ward if appropriate. This list 
would be revised following consultation due to take place in the next month. 

 The 15% Local CIL was to be allocated by ward councillors for ‘the provision, 
improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure’ and/or 
‘anything else that was concerned with addressing the demands that development 
placed on an area.’ It was likely to be used to fund many high priority Ward 
Improvement Plan (WIP) schemes although not all WIP schemes were eligible for 
CIL funds. 

 £127m of strategic infrastructure needs had been identified. £32m funding had been 
secured, leaving a shortfall of £95m. After a 50/50 split, only £7.5-£10.5 m of 
strategic CIL was likely within the first three years of CIL receipts. 

 The £24m shortfall for school place provision could be at most 1/3 funded by 
Strategic CIL over three years. Other council funds were scarce. There ere also no 
strategic CIL funds available for supporting social housing provision through major 
projects such as the redevelopment of Finsbury Leisure Centre, parks/housing 
estate open spaces, adventure playgrounds, ball courts, Multi-Use Games Areas 
(MUGAs) or community centres so Local CIL and S106 was required. 

 £37 m of Section 106 funds was held and $24 m of this had been allocated to 
projects. Future S106 funds likely to be received were £6m. S106 funds had to be 
allocated locally. 

 Several scenarios had been modelled. The July Executive report would propose a 
minimum £30,000 of local strategic CIL for each ward. Annual calculations would 
take place each December. 

 The July Executive paper would allocate Islington’s first £1.6m of carbon offsetting 
contributions secured through S106. All allocations of carbon offsetting funds were 
agreed by the Affordable Energy Board. Initial priorities included insulating high-rise 

Page 3



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  24 May 2016 
 

4 
 

estate buildings (£1.5m), ‘Housing and Health’ fund (£50,000) and ‘Energising Small 
Business’ fund (£50,000). 

 The CIL ‘Regulation 123’ infrastructure list set out how strategic CIL funds were 
likely to be spent. Islington’s list was quite broad. Minor revisions were proposed 
through public consultation and the Executive would make a decision on these in 
July. The list was mainly to ensure developers could not claim that carbon offsetting 
contributions used on housing estate high-rise insulation represented a duplication 
of their CIL liabilities. 

 It was proposed that to speed up the allocation process that one member per ward 
would act as the leader councillor for WIP review and allocations with the lead 
member consulting colleagues and reporting back. Where a ward had members 
from more than one party, both parties would have a lead member. 

 
RESOLVED: 
That the presentation be noted. 
 

51 SMART CITIES SCRUTINY REPORT (Item B4) 
RESOLVED: 
That the report be agreed subject to the addition of a recommendation to refer to the 
importance of the council retaining the ownership of data the wording of which was 
delegated to officers in consultation with the chair. 
 

52 CCTV SCRUTINY REPORT (Item B5) 
RESOLVED: 
That the report be agreed. 
 

53 SCRUTINY TOPICS - 2016/17 (Item B6) 
RESOLVED: 

1) That members email the chair with any suggestions. 
2) That an additional meeting be arranged to approve topics. 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.25 pm 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 4



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 
 

Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  27 June 2016 
 
 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee held at 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on  27 June 2016 at 6.45 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: James Court (Chair), Gary Heather, Clare Jeapes and 
Caroline Russell 

 
 

Councillor James Court in the Chair 
 

 

 

54 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A1) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hamitouche and Councillor Rupert 
Perry. 
 

55 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A2) 
 
There were no declarations of substitute members. 
 

56 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A3) 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

57 PUBLIC QUESTIONS (Item A4) 
 
There were no questions from members of the public. 
 

58 SCRUTINY TOPICS (Item B1) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the main scrutiny topic for 2016/17 would be the Regeneration of Retail Areas.  
The scope of the scrutiny is to be agreed at the next meeting.  
 

2. It was further agreed that the committee would also take evidence on the following 
topics and that half a meeting would be allocated to each: 
 
a) An update on progress of the installation of PV solar panels on council buildings. 
 
b) Use of BBQs in public open spaces  
 
c) Promoting use of electric vehicles 
 
d) Flood preparedness 
 

Page 5



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  27 June 2016 
 

2 
 

Councillor Court advised that it would be necessary for him to vacate the chair for 
the item on electric vehicles. 
 

3. It was further agreed that two visits would be organised during the year; one to 
Gillespie Park and one to the Bunhill Heat and Power Energy Centre. 
 

4. It was also agreed that the following subjects would be considered for the allocation 
of committee time later in the year, subject to progress with the main scrutiny and 
the items above: 
 
a) The Mayor of London’s ‘Energy for Londoner’ proposals 
b) The Ultra Low Emission Zone consultation 
 

5. That the draft a work programme reflecting the above be considered at the next 
meeting.  
 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 6



Page 1 of 6 

 
  Corporate Resources 
  Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD 
 
Report of: Corporate Director for Environment and Regeneration 
 

Meeting of: Date Agenda item Ward(s) 
 

Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

20-09-2016  
 

 
All 

 

Delete as 
appropriate 

 Non-exempt  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Report back on fuel poverty scrutiny  
 

1. Synopsis 
 

1.1 The Environment & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee conducted a review which ran from October 2014 
until May 2015 and evidence was received from a variety of sources. The committee’s 
recommendations are directed towards several departments of the council and to the Health & 
Wellbeing Board. This report summarises actions being taken to address the recommendations. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 To note progress against the recommendations made by the committee as of September 2016 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 Between October 2014 and May 2015 the scrutiny committee explored the impact of fuel poverty on 
households, existing policies and strategies to alleviate fuel poverty in both the short and long term and 
the opportunities for Islington to provide assistance and support to residents. 
 

3.2 The committee concluded that although much work was already being done on fuel poverty, that further 
work should be done to co-ordinate action by various groups and to offer a more holistic approach to 
solving the problem of fuel poverty. Recommendations relate to energy efficiency standards in both 
private and social rented properties, to the role of the health and social care sector, to income 
maximisation, debt and fuel support and to the need for greater investment in London housing and in 
particular harder to insulate housing.  
 

3.3 It should be noted that a number of significant policy changes have been proposed at national level 
since the conclusion of the scrutiny, combined with the advent of a new government and new Mayor of 
London these have altered the landscape somewhat.  These are addressed in the progress report.  
 

4. Implications 

Page 7

Agenda Item B1



Page 2 of 6 

 
4.1 Financial implications:  

The report on the progress on the recommendations set out in Appendix A does not have any financial 
implications. 

  
4.2 Legal Implications: 

The report on the progress on the recommendations as set out in Appendix A does not have any 
specific legal implications. 

  
4.3 Environmental Implications: 

 
None identified. Energy efficiency interventions reduce carbon emissions. 

  
4.4 Resident  Impact Assessment: 

 
The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster good 
relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not share it 
(section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of disabled 
persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public life. The council must have due 
regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.  
  
A Resident Impact Assessment was carried out in October 2015 and reviewed in September 2016. The 
main findings follow. There are not believed to any negative impacts on residents with protected 
characteristics. There is evidence that fuel poverty and its health impacts have a disproportionate 
impact on older people, people with disabilities, families with young children and people with certain 
conditions such as sickle cell disease and thalassaemia that are more prevalent amongst certain ethnic 
groups. Measures to tackle fuel poverty will be of particular benefit to these groups and overall those in 
disadvantaged economic groups. 

  
 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 
 

5.1 A number of actions have been taken since the conclusion of the scrutiny and these are detailed in 
Appendix A. Members are invited to note these actions. With some greater certainty on the direction of 
government policy on fuel poverty we hope to develop a new fuel poverty strategy for Islington by the 
end of 2016/17. This will further build on the recommendations of the committee. 

 
Appendices 
Appendix A: The Committee’s Recommendations And Progress 
 
 
Final report clearance: 
 
Signed by:  

 
 

 
 

 Kevin O’Leary 
Corporate Director for Environment & 
Regeneration 
 

Date 7 September 2016 

Received by:  
 
 

 

 Head of Democratic Services Date 

Page 8



Page 3 of 6 

 
Report Author: John Kolm-Murray 
Tel: 020 7527 3800 
Fax: 020 7527 2332 
Email: John.kolm-murray@islington.gov.uk  
 
 

APPENDIX A: THE COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATIONS AND PROGRESS 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 1: That the council considers setting energy efficiency standards for its housing and 
those it pays housing benefit to, plus encourages housing associations to work towards the same target. 
 
PROGRESS – We have a target to bring the majority of council properties up to at least Standard Assessment 
Procedure (SAP) SAP Band D by 2022 and all LBI-managed homes to SAP Band C by 2030. Government 
proposals to make all social housing in the lowest SAP bands (F and G) automatically eligible for funding from 
2017 without residents means testing should assist in meeting this target.   
 
We now have a SAP band rating for all directly-managed Council properties. The main focus over the next 12 
months will be updating our asset management software with information relating to recently-completed capital 
schemes and collecting energy efficiency information in respect of PFI properties. 
 
Over 98% of directly-managed properties are rated band D and above. There are 223 properties at band E 
and 53 properties in bands F and G. 
 
It is likely that the Housing & Planning Act 2016 will have a material impact on the Council’s housing stock 
through the enforced sale of high-value voids and this may well affect the achievement of any energy 
efficiency targets. 
 
The setting of a common target for social housing in the borough has been discussed with social landlords 
however they have been reluctant to set this. However we have received information from several social 
landlords representing over 9,400 homes in the borough and 73% of these dwellings are already at SAP Band 
D or above, with 51% at SAP Band C or above. Several landlords expected to have difficulties reaching the 
2030 target and this could be a challenge for Partners-managed properties too given funding levels.  
 
The limited pool of Islington properties available to privately rent by those on Housing Benefit in Islington 
means that we could cause problematic shortfalls in stock if we insist upon minimum energy efficiency 
standards beyond those enforceable as excess cold hazards under the Housing Act 2004. A more successful 
approach would be to have a consistent approach across London and we will work with other boroughs, 
London Councils and the Mayor of London to deliver this. The matter has been raised with the GLA however 
they are yet to agree their detailed priorities in light of the very recent appointment of a new Deputy Mayor for 
Environment and Energy.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 2: That the council undertakes work to encourage landlords to install energy efficiency 
measures in their properties. This could involve using environmental health powers to address problems of 
private landlords not meeting standards, particularly those coming into force in 2018. 
 
PROGRESS – Residential Environmental Health are feeding into the Councils corporate big data project 
which should include allocating resources to  explore the relationship between  fuel poverty and the private 
rented sector. This is just one example of how the council is developing data matching further to target poor 
energy efficiency in the private rented sector. 
 
In preparation of the forthcoming private rented sector energy efficiency regulations Residential Environmental 
Health are planning to prioritise the improvement of standards under the Housing Act 2004. Two examples of 
how this can be done is for Residential Environmental Health Officers to be authorised to enforcer the Energy 
Performance certificates legislation and are also currently considering developing grant aid to match fund any 
improvements required to improve heating and thermal insulation. 
 

Page 9

mailto:John.kolm-murray@islington.gov.uk


Page 4 of 6 

As they stand the Private Rented Sector Energy Efficiency Regulations (Domestic) as they stand are very 
dependent on the now defunct Green Deal as they stipulate that there should be no upfront cost to the 
landlord. The Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) will be consulting on amended 
regulations in 2017 that may instead set a cost cap for landlords. There is some opposition to this amongst the 
private landlords’ lobby and Cllr Webbe wrote to the Energy Minister in August 2016 calling for her to resist 
this pressure.  
 
The recent Housing & Planning Act allows for local authorities to access Tenancy Deposit Scheme for the first 
time and free local authority access to Energy Performance Certificate data is also imminent. Combining these 
two data sets should allow us to more effectively tackle the worst performing privately rented properties.  
 
RECOMMNEDATION 3: That the Health and Wellbeing Board be requested to adopt relevant 
recommendations from the NICE guideline on excess winter deaths, in particular: a) support and maintain the 
provision of the Seasonal Health Interventions Network (SHINE) and b) ensure greater participation from the 
health and social care sectors in identifying and addressing cold homes. 
 
PROGRESS – The Health and Wellbeing Board advised that, whilst they do not plan to formally adopt the 
recommendations, they very much welcome the National Institute of Health and Care Excellence (NICE) 
Public Health guideline on excess winter deaths and morbidity and the health risks associated with cold 
homes, and notes how the pioneering work of SHINE in Islington has contributed to shaping this guidance.  
The single point of contact principle articulated in the NICE guidance is important locally, because many health 
professionals find it difficult to navigate and refer patients/residents into the range of different housing 
interventions and advice available, depending on residents’ tenure/housing status.  The Board therefore 
support’s the important role SHINE plays in this area.   A number of programmes and initiatives are already 
being delivered in Islington, aligned to the delivery of Islington’s health and wellbeing strategy and its three 
broad strategic priorities, that recognise and encourage greater participation of health and social care staff in 
identifying and addressing fuel poverty.  They include:- 

 The “Making Every Contract Count” e-learning programme, which is upskilling a wide range of people 
working in Islington Council, the NHS and Voluntary and Community Sector to identify needs and 
signpost into local services, including SHINE. 

 Collaborative work between HASS and Islington CCG to develop and improve referral pathways 
between General Practitioners and housing services, which may include, for example, identifying a 
single point of contact within housing services to co-ordinate actions for tenants with multiple needs. 

 Islington’s “Links for Living” online directory offers advice, information and support for Islington residents 
and their carers in order to support healthy, independent lives, including information and signposting to 
SHINE. 

 The Seasonal Health & Affordable (SHAW) Team in 2016 co-produced training for health practitioners 
with the Camden & Islington NHS Foundation Trust Recovery College on the effects of housing on 
health, both mental and physical, and referral routes to SHINE. 
 

Improving health through housing requires joined-up actions in both the health and housing sectors so that 
health problems are recognised by housing and housing problems are recognised by health services, and 
residents are supported into appropriate services and interventions. The Health and Wellbeing Board will 
maintain oversight of these programmes as they develop, through periodic progress reports on the health and 
housing work being taken forward in Islington, and through championing a joined up approach across the 
health and care system. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4: That the council undertakes steps to ensure that vulnerable people claim their full 
entitlement of benefits, including the Warm Home Discount. 
 
PROGRESS – By the end of winter 2015/16 Warm Home Discounts had been secured for over 3,300 low 
income Islington households and we aim to secure at least 800 further discounts over this autumn and winter. 
In 2015 we commenced a similar process with Thames Water for their social tariff, providing either capped 
bills (for metered consumers) or discounts of 50% (for unmetered consumers) to those deemed to be in water 
poverty. From winter 2017/18 the government plans to pay Warm Home Discounts to eligible households 
automatically through a data matching exercise between the Department for Work & Pensions, HM Revenue & 
Customs and energy suppliers.  
 

Page 10



Page 5 of 6 

The council’s Welfare Rights Team continues to assist residents to secure the benefits they are entitled to and 
SHINE refers hundreds of residents each year for their services. Advisors working in the SHINE Hub are also 
receiving advanced benefits training to assist them in helping residents who may be eligible for further social 
security benefits.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 5: That the council lobbies the government and the Mayor for London for more 
investment for fuel poverty reduction schemes, particularly in harder to treat housing 
 
PROGRESS – In summer 2016 the government consulted on its new funding arrangement for domestic 
energy efficiency measures, the Energy Company Obligation – Help to Heat. Regrettably this reduced the 
funding available through the previous supplier obligation from £800 million to £640 million however the 
revised programme will be focussed much more on the fuel poor. Several other changes to the scheme are 
positive: a move away from individualised property scoring to set scores for particular measures should favour 
some works in harder to treat properties; simplified benefit criteria; an increase in the number of eligible 
households from 3 million to 4 million across Great Britain; all social housing below SAP Band E to qualify for 
funding without further means-testing; and allowing suppliers to deliver a proportion of their target through 
local authority certification of vulnerable households. This could be of considerable benefit to a scheme like 
SHINE and its Warmth on Prescription element.  
On the flipside suppliers will still be able to cherry-pick where they deliver their obligation and their reluctance 
to work in London is likely to remain. BEIS have made some broad statements about exploring incentives to 
work in underserved areas but we will continue to lobby them, with the GLA and the Association of Local 
Energy Officers London (ALEO London) to set a regional obligation for London. The consultation also 
proposed to retain the solid wall insulation minimum at its current level and we have called for this to be far 
higher. The nature of the proposed new obligation also means that it will place a greater burden on local 
authorities to have data on the housing stock in their areas and this is likely to have a significant resource 
implication if we are to secure significant funding across tenures.  
The GLA yet to agree their detailed priorities in light of the very recent appointment of a new Deputy Mayor for 
Environment and Energy but we expect our objectives to be in alignment and will continue to work with them to 
deliver the best deal for London boroughs such as our own.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 6: That the council continues to proactively engage with partners and shares best 
practice with other authorities. 
 
PROGRESS – SHINE continues to recruit new partners and this year has seen increased involvement from 
local mental health services in particular. We are also exploring partnership opportunities with UK Power 
Networks and National Grid for their engagement with vulnerable power and gas customers.  The smart meter 
rollout also presents an opportunity to reach vulnerable consumers and we have had discussions with Thames 
Water and energy suppliers to facilitate referrals.  
In December 2015 SHINE was among the winners of a cross-European fuel poverty competition run by 
Ashoka and Schneider Electric and received business development support. Staff have also presented on the 
work at various conferences and seminars and in September will be giving evidence before the All Party 
Parliamentary Group on Fuel Poverty & Energy Efficiency.  
Council officers have also been discussing the rollout of SHINE to nearby London boroughs and are actively 
seeking funding from a variety of sources to do so. The advent of a new, overarching energy brand for the 
Islington energy service is also intended to further raise the profile of SHINE and related activities.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 7: That the council and partners provide and promote services to alleviate energy debt. 
 
PROGRESS – In July 2016 the Affordable Energy Board and Islington Debt Coalition adopted a new Energy & 
Water Debt Action Plan. This plan seeks to consolidate and improve the approach of the council and partners 
to energy and water debt.  Energy and water debt training sessions have already been run for frontline staff 
across the council and partner agencies to allow them to better assist indebted clients and a seminar on the 
subject will be held in September 2016.  
The number of debt cases handled by council energy advisors rose by almost 40% between 2014/15 and 
2015/16.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 8: That officers ascertain whether council void contracts included a requirement to 
undertake draught insulation in void properties and if they did not, that this be added into future contracts 

Page 11



Page 6 of 6 

 
PROGRESS – Housing voids team contractors now carry out draught proofing to front doors on all properties, 
unless they are composite uPVC. They also will carry this work out on sash windows where they are 
particularly bad. Energy and housing officers are exploring other means of improving energy efficiency in void 
properties.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

2016/17 
 
 
20 September 2016  

1) Communal Heating report back 
2) Fuel Poverty report back 
3) Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review – Presentation and Scrutiny 

Initiation Document (SID) 
4) Work Programme 

 
3 November 2016 

1) Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review – Witness Evidence 
2) Flood preparedness presentation 
3) Performance Indicator Report – Quarter 1 
4) Work Programme 

 
5 December 2016 

1) Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review – Witness Evidence 
2) Promoting the use of electric vehicles presentation 
3) Work Programme 

 
23 January 2017 

1) Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review – Witness Evidence 
2) The progress of the installation of PV solar panels on council buildings 

presentation 
3) Performance Indicator Report – Quarter 2 
4) Work Programme 

 
9 March 2017 

1) Community Energy report back  
2) Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review – Draft Recommendations and 

Report 
3) Presentation on the use of barbecues in public open spaces 
4) Work Programme 

 
25 April 2017 

1) Regeneration of Retail Areas Scrutiny Review – Final Report 
2) Work Programme 

 
25 May 2017 

1) Executive Member Annual Report 
2) Work Programme 

 
Visits To Be Undertaken During The Year 

1) Gillespie Park 
2) Bunhill Heat and Power Energy Centre 

 
Topics To Be Considered For The Allocation of Committee Time During The 
Year Subject To The Progress Of The Work Programme 

1) The Mayor of London’s ‘Energy for Londoner’ proposals 
2) The Ultra Low Emission Zone consultation 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item B4



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A4 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	27 June 2016 minutes

	B1 Fuel Poverty scrutiny review - 12 month report back
	B4 Work Programme

